
CLATSOP COUNTY 
Trans. & Dvlp. Srvcs., Planning Division 
800 Exchange Street, Suite 100 
Astoria, OR 97103 

www.co.clatsop.or.us 
ph: 503-325-8611 
fx:503-338-3666 
em: comdev@co.clatsop.or.us 

 
SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW / CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 16, 2010 @ 6:00 P.M. Arch Cape Fire Hall, 79816 E Beach Road 

 
REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING – 6 P.M. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER (George Cerelli, Chairperson) 6:00 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. BUSINESS FROM THE PUBLIC - This is an opportunity for anyone to give a brief 
presentation (3 minutes or less) to the Committee on any land use planning issue or county 
concern that is not on the agenda. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES: 

 January 19, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 February 3, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 February 17, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 March 26, 2010 Public Forum 
 April 7, 2010 Design Review Minutes 
 May 7, 2010 Design Review Minutes 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR / MINOR REVIEW ITEMS  

 July 23, 2010 Public Hearing w/ Planning Commission Arch Cape Fire Hall  

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS / MAJOR DESIGN REVIEW: 
 Reiling – Minor Design Review presented by Arthur (Larry) Reiling. The applicant is 

proposing to expand an existing deck on tax lot 1700. The applicant has submitted a plot 
plan indicating the impact area and illustrating the expansion. 

7. OTHER DISCUSSION 
 This is a chance for the committee to discuss and invite testimony from outside agents 

regarding topics of interest. 

8. ADJOURN 

http://www.co.clatsop.or.us/
mailto:comdev@co.clatsop.or.us


 
MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING HELD January 19, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
 

Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:05 PM. 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), John Mersereau (JM), Debra Birkby (DB), Richard 
D'Onofrio (RD).  Linda Murray and Tod Lundy were excused.   Staff present:  Michael Weston 
(MW). 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
There were no presentations from the public. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
  Minutes of September 16, 2009, November 18, 2009, and December 15, 2009 – DB 
moved to adopt the Minutes as read, adding that the Conditions of Approval should be stated 
within.  JM seconded the Motion.   
 
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
  
 Reese – Minor Design Review. 
 
  MW presented the information, stating that the Reese’s built and expanded a deck  
  at their residence, doing so without proper permits.  MW stated that the Reese’s 
  are in the process of obtaining proper permits and that their neighbor to the east, 
  Ray Gonzalez, had sent a letter expressing his belief that the deck partially  
  obstructed his ocean view.   
   

After further discussion, the committee determined that the drawings submitted  
  were not accurate.  The committee recommended that the Reese’s submit an 
  accurate plan/drawing of what was actually done.  This matter will be 
  continued on February 3, 2010, at the regular DRB meeting. 
 
 4:00 PM, February 3, 2010 – Work Session (Code Revisions) 
 6:00 PM, February 3, 2010   Regular Design Review meeting 
 
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
 There were no items at this time. 
 
Presentations 
 
 The SW Coastal CAC subcommittee, Arch Cape Options Committee, presented a Power 
 Point addressing concerns and proposed resolutions gathered from the community  



 meeting held on April 29, 2009.  Committee member, Mike Manzulli (MM), chaired the 
presentation, asking for specific feedback on each slide from the DRB/CAC, as this 
committee is a subcommittee of the DRB/CAC.  After a lengthy discussion regarding 
intent, history, previous efforts, county finances and county function, changing county 
policy and the community’s concerns, it was recommended that the following revisions 
be made: 

• Slide #11:  shift authority from the Planning Commission to the DRB. 
DRB shall have authority to render decisions as final (same as a 2A 
Hearing Officer); will have to draft Appeals language – refer to Ords 
2.020, 2.025 and 2.030.  Draft our language the same way so that the DRB 
will fall under these guidelines.  The final say on Minor Hearing Matters 
 will be with the DRB; the County will still hear Appeals.  The emphasis  
on the presentation to the Board will be financial.  DB will provide  
specific DRB recommendations that have been reversed. 
 
• Slide #12:  Rewrite as solution-oriented rather than blaming; we want 

to protect our community so (same) things don’t happen in the future.  
We can provide these services and save the County money. 
Bullet should say “developers can ignore County’s…” delete “and 
do…” 
 

• Slide #18:  Rewrite first bullet for language 
 

• Slide #21:  Rewrite third bullet –“ ORS requires…” 
 

The Arch Cape Options Committee will revise the Power Point as directed by the 
DRB/CAC.  The DRB will review the revisions.  MM stated that the plan was for the 
Options Committee is to meet with Robert Mushen and then the community as a whole. 
MM also requested that no one who receives the Power Point as a PDF email forward it 
on to anyone. 
 
Other Discussion 
 
 DB brought up the subject of the SDRO expansion, citing specifically that she has  
 been told by Castle Rock Estates and the Fire Department that they do not fall  
 under the DRB/CAC.  MW stated that they are, indeed, within the Site Design  
 Overlay and that the entire rural community should be contained within the DRB, 

adding that the above-entities have not gone through the code, map, or zoning 
amendment proceeses.  MW will get copies of the SDRO overlay maps to the 
DRB and will check on four lots that are not included in the overlay. 
 
DB stated that she had been asked by a committee member (SM) if the DRB 
would be the appropriate forum to address the possibility of a commercial water 
rate, stating that he would prefer to keep the discussion local and not involve 
outside agencies.  SM has retained legal counsel; Mike Manzulli (MM) is 
representing 



the Water District.  MM stated that Special Districts has the authority to render 
the decision and that the Water District is waiting to hear back.  Tom Merrell 
asked for community input regarding a commercial rate structure, advising that 
the next Water District meeting is on February 12, 2010, at 6:00 PM.  DB thought 
that the DRB would not be able to render an opinion on this matter and MW said 
this was out of his purview.  JM stated that, in his opinion, the community, as a 
whole, would be appalled at a commercial break on water rates. 

   
 Meeting adjourned at 7:47 PM 
  
 
 



 
MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING HELD February 3, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
 

Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:05 PM 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), Debra Birkby (DB), Linda Murray (LM), Richard 
D'Onofrio (RD) and Tod Lundy (TL).  Staff present:  Michael Weston (MW).  JM was excused; 
SM arrived late. 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
There were no presentations from the public. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
There were no Minutes to be considered at this time. 
  
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
  
 Reese – The applicant has replaced a previously existing deck without permits and 
enclosed the railing.  The application and documentation was provided for review.  As the 
previous application was difficult to read, MW redrew the lines for ease in reading  The 
Applicant presented a new Site Plan and Evidence. MW reiterated that there was one comment 
received from Ray Gonzalez (RG). MW stated that County staff recommended a different kind 
of siding to reduce level of blockage of ocean view as per precedent and added that the Applicant 
is within his right to build a deck there; but that the question is the protection of ocean view with 
the type of siding used.  Mr. Reese stated that the deck had been in need of serious repair for 
some time and that the portion they added was the part in contention.  The Building Department 
told him that it wasn’t a repair; but something new.  Mr. Reese said he couldn’t argue with that.  
As to the protection of RG’s view:  Mr. Reese stated that RG doesn’t have a lot of ocean view 
anyway; but that he (Reese) will satisfy what needs to be done per the DRB and County’s 
recommendations and that he is in the process of obtaining the necessary permits.  LM asked if 
the DRB has any right to regulate the siding on a deck.  MW said the DRB could, under the 
protection of ocean views.  A discussion followed concerning the ocean view from RG’s 
property.  RD said RG’s view is underneath the Reese’s.  MW stated there isn’t much of an 
ocean view; but it needs to be protected and recommended a see-through railing around the end 
of the house and not enclose the storage space underneath the deck.  DB moved that the project 
be approved.  RD seconded the Motion.  The Motion carried.   
 
  
 February 17, 2010, at 6:00 pm – next regularly scheduled Design Review meeting.   
 
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
There were none at this time. 



MINUTES FROM THE SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD April 7, 2010, at 6:00 PM 

 
Chairman George Cerelli called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
 
Members present:  George Cerelli (GC), John Mersereau (JM), Debra Birkby (DB), Linda 
Murray (LM), Richard D'Onofrio (RD) and Tod Lundy (TL).  Staff present:  Michael Weston 
(MW).    Steve Malkowski (SM) absent. 
 
Business from the Public: 
 
  Dale Mosby gave the committee a letter he had written concerning his comments regarding the 
proposed ordinances.  He stated that the letter could be read later.  Bob Tarr stated that he 
thought the STR cap idea was unfair because some homeowners would be able to profit from 
their property and while others could not.  MW said that the board has been discussing this issue 
of a rotating eligibility list. He gave the example that if the cap were at 20%, the homeowner 
could rent out his home for three to five years.  When that time period is up, another 20% would 
be eligible.  MW added that the proposal is a 20% STR  cap with 10% B&B’s.  B&B not subject 
to rotation because they fall under conditional use.  JM added that all  STR’s registered now 
would be grandfathered in and they would lose that standing if the property is sold or if they are 
in violation. – out if they sell or violated.  A female speaker asked if all of the STR’s would be 
notified.  MW replied notification would be via a card in the mails.  Another woman from the 
audience opined that  B&B’s provide a measure of safety to the neighborhood(s) as they are 
owner-occupied and that many of the B&B’s owners are retired with this financial set-up.  Jack 
Hampton (JH), Pres of OR Lodgings, said that he appreciated the grandfather approach and 
asked if the intention was to have a STR permit cut-off time.  MW said that once homeowners 
have notice of the proposed changes, the time is up; that those properties on the list by the end of 
April will be grandfathered in.  Mike Manzulli asked for the definition of a minor tree.  DB 
answered that the group had to omit this discussion due to time constraints; but they will revisit 
and define.  
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
 
There were no Minutes to be considered at this time. 
  
Consent Calendar/Minor Review Items: 
 
April 13, 2010 – Work Session with Planning Commission 
 
April 21, 2010 – Meeting “Ordinance Revisions” 
 
May 7, 2020 – Meeting and Public Forum “Ordinance 10-01” 
 
May 19, 2010 – Work Session – revisions to “Ordinance 10-01” 
 
May 25, 2010 – Work Session with Planning Commission prior to June 8, 2010, Public Forum 



   
Public Hearings/Major Design Review 
 
Lantela – Applicant is proposing to construct a new single family dwelling on Tax Lot 3800.  
Applicant has submitted a plot plan and tree removal plan along with house plans, average grade 
calculations and findings in support of the proposal.  Bill Boone( BB) presented the plans on 
behalf of Ms. Lantela. Tree removal consists of removing 4 trees within the footprint of the 
house and replacing any disturbed vegetation with natural vegetation.  BB stated that the house 
was originally 1600 square feet.  It is now around 2000 square feet or approximately two feet 
wider.  MW stated that County staff believes that the plan conforms with criteria.  BB added that 
it is a simple house with cedar siding fronting Woodland Heights Road.  DB asked BB if he had 
received any feedback from neighbors.  BB said he had not; but had spoken with the neighbor to 
the north.  MW added that he had not received any letters regarding this project.  There was a 
brief discussion regarding drainage on the lot.  BB stated that the creek is down at the bottom of 
the lot and that the natural drainage flows that way.  He added that he would put in dry well if 
that were the recommendation of the DRB. DB asked for any other comments regarding this 
project.  There were none.  TL moved that the project be approved with the re-vegetation with 
indigenous plants within one year of completion, installation of a dry well and repair of all road 
damage.  RD seconded the Motion.  The Motion carried. 
 
 Other Discussion 
   
DB stated that she had two concerns to discuss. 
 

1. The process changing conditional use permits in that only the director is making 
the decision.  The intention of commercial use in Arch Cape is limited and to be 
there to support the community (i.e. grocery store, gas station.)  All of the citizens 
should have the opportunity to provide input.  MW stated that the Arch Cape Inn 
changes could be considered an expansion of commercial use and would have 
required a Design Review under the proposed revisions; additionally there were 
enough questions in the air to trigger a review, additionally under section 
4.104(1B) Any new commercial development proposing new structures should be 
subject to Design Review and that the owner has to get permits for his renovations 
including roads and parking lots.  MW stated that the Arch Cape Inn has changed 
from a three bedroom, owner-occupied Bed & Breakfast to a ten-room hotel.  RD 
pointed out that he has gone from an in house serving facility to a public 
restaurant.  LM asked if he needed a driveway on to the highway if he has ten 
rooms and expressed concerns over traffic safety issues.  JM expressed 
displeasure that this request did not come through Design Review.  MW 
suggested that Design Review Board review the conditional use criteria 5.0 – 
5.030 and see what the Inn did not meet.  LM asked if it would be better to make 
a Motion or write a letter for the Board members to sign.  MW responding to the 
question recommended a letter form and added that the Board should have a 
representative at the Planning Commission meeting and that the DRB can request 
that that the record be left open to respond to new evidence. 

 



2. Concern about the lack of attendance of one of the Board members:  the Board is 
always down a member and has to stop to take the time to bring that person up to 
speed.  RD added that this person does not call the Chair to be excused; but 
occasionally calls the County.  DB stressed the importance that GC needs to know 
if he will have a quorum for the meeting(s).  MW and GC stated that they didn’t 
know that SM was not going to be at this meeting.  The comment was made that 
Board members should be a resident of Arch Cape.  Consensus was reached that 
the matter of attendance is in the Bylaws and that a Bylaws work session is going 
to be scheduled. 

 
   
 Meeting adjourned at 7:15 PM 
  
 
 



 
 SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW/CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC FORUM held May 7, 2010, at 6:00 PM 
re ZONING ORDINANCE REVISIONS 

 
 

No roll was taken. 
 
Chairman George Cerelli (GC) announced that this forum was a quasi-judicial hearing regarding 
Zoning Ordinance Revisions and asked for the County Staff Report from Mike Weston (MW.)  
There were no objections as to the jurisdiction of the Committee to hear the report. 
 
MW stated that Ordinance 10-01 presents modifications and adjustments to the rural overlay.  He 
presented information regarding accessory dwellings, outdoor lighting, tree removal, road 
development, off-street parking, non-conforming uses in accordance with Oregon revised 
statutes, the removal of the hardship variance and the modification of the percentage cap of Short 
Term Rentals (STR’s) and Bed & Breakfasts.  (The percentage of STR’s would be at a 20% cap 
of the total number of homes.)   MW added that currently there are 50 registered STR’s and the 
cap would allow up to 70 STR’s.  Article 4.104 implements a class system:  Class 1:  those 
STR’s that were registered prior to April 28, 2010.  Post April 28, 2010, those homes would be 
put on a five year rotational list; if there were no openings then they would be put on a wait list. 
Those STR’s registered prior to 4/28/10 would not be subject to rotation as long as they remain 
in good standing, without violation(s).  If a homeowner has a rental unit and an accessory 
dwelling, then one unit would be a long-term rental and one would be a STR. 
 
Comments/Questions from the Audience 
 
GC reminded that audience that if one wishes to speak or present evidence that one needed to 
sign the list. 
 
Dale Mosby stated he would like to be on the record to provide his comments in writing. 
Chris Hartman stated that STR’s bring a lot of revenue to local businesses and that some people 
cannot afford to buy here, and have to rent out their homes in order to afford a home on the 
coast. He didn’t like the fact that the STR cannot be transferred upon the sale of the property.  
Richard D’Onofrio (RD) responded that Arch Cape is a residential area, not a rotating motel and 
that STR’s are, in general, not a part of Arch Cape’s Mission Statement.  Tod Lundy (TL) added 
that the committee had a higher cap; but that the public preferred a lower number. Debra Birkby 
(DB) stated that Arch Cape is not inside an urban growth area like Cannon Beach 
 
Rainey Graham had no comment at this time. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about the stance of the community regarding tree removal.  MW responded that 
the original object of Arch Cape was to create a wooded residential neighborhood and prevent  
clear-cutting and/or logging.  Currently one is not authorized to cut down a tree. The Ordinance 
allows for the removal of a tree with a $79 permit for safety reasons or if it is dead.  If a 
homeowner wants to cut down a tree, the owner can request to do so with an arborist’s statement 



and a plot plan.  MW added that the bottom line is that it will cost approximately $300 to cut 
down a tree.   By definition, a tree has a diameter of six inches or more. DB explained that if a 
project is going before the DRB, a landscape plan is required. The new proposal allows a 
homeowner an avenue to cut down his tree.   
 
Jim Sparks asked about the need to hire a surveyor.  MW stated that if your building is within 2 
feet of building height, you must hire a surveyor to come out after building and recheck the 
height to make sure it’s within the criteria. John Mersereau (JM) added that all of those 
measurements are to be taken from undisturbed ground.  MW said that you should not be filling 
bare land.  DB asked Mr. Sparks if he had an original benchmark and if it was less than 26 feet.  
Mr. Sparks stated he did.   
 
Mike Manzulli: Stated his approval for the ordinance in general, was happy to see the variance 
hardship retained, and was satisfied with the cap on the short term rentals and the 5 year rotation. 
He also stated his concerns regarding tree removal and stated the need for the owner to present 
evidence that the tree was indeed a hazard before it is removed.  
 
Nadia Gardner (NG) stated that she was happy with the number of STR’s and that parking 
issues, parties and rundown homes, often accompany them.  She added that she had no sympathy 
for un-permitted short-term rentals.  Steve Malkowski (SM) stated that there is no mechanism in 
place to address un-permitted STR’s.  MW stated that the cap on STR’s was a goal to maintain 
rural feel of community.  DB commented that illegal STR’s owners are using their rental(s) as a 
tax deduction. It was confirmed that there is a two-week per year time limit that an STR owner 
can use the home for their personal use.   
 
Michelle Delaney confirmed that her STR is grandfathered in.  DB explained that the intent of 
the rotation was not to limit the opportunity to rent your house, but rather to provide an 
opportunity for all residents to rent out their homes while maintaining the provisions of the cap.  
MW explained the good faith clause used in vesting determinations and how that relates to the  
grandfather clause: once you’re notified, you’re considered on notice and you can’t race to beat 
the clock because that would be considered a bad faith effort. SM asked if neighbors near STR’s 
would have the opportunity to comment and he asked the audience if they would like to see the 
illegal STR’s scrutinized because they haven’t been playing by the rules. MW stated that 
currently there is no notification procedure for renewals and implementing that procedure would 
increase the cost significantly.   NG said we need a better enforcement system.  A discussion 
followed regarding Ordinance 4.115, which describes compliance and resolutions.  SM added 
that he was not proposing that sanctions be put on unregistered STR’s. 
 
 Dale Mosby said he was more comfortable with a 0% cap on STR’s.  JM questioned why there 
is a commercial venture going on in a residential area and that property management companies 
control the majority of the STR’s.   
 
A female speaker said she was thrilled that the number of STR’s had been capped and thanked 
the committee for being responsive to the full time residents’ needs. 
 


	CLATSOP COUNTY
	SOUTHWEST COASTAL DESIGN REVIEW / CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, June 16, 2010 @ 6:00 P.M. Arch Cape Fire Hall, 79816 E Beach Road

	2010 - 1 -19 DR Minutes.pdf
	Other Discussion

	050710 public forum re zoning ord revisions.pdf
	Comments/Questions from the Audience
	Follow-Up Discussion by Committee Members

	Reiling Mailing LIst.pdf
	Sheet1


